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INDEFENDENT AUDMITOR’S REPORT

Tao the Members of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualificd Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Vikas Publishing House Privaie Limited (“ihe
Company™}, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of C hanges in Equity Tor the
year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policics
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, except for the effects
of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its loss including other comprehensive income., its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As explained in the note 49 of the financial statement, due to travel restrictions and impracticability to travel on
account of COVID-19 as at March 31, 2020 and due 1o significant business activities subsequent to year-end, the
management could not perform physical count of inventory as at March 31, 2020 through to the date of approval of
these financial statements, Accordingly. we were not able to observe the physical count of inventory, therefore, we
were unable o verify the existence/condition of inventories of Rs. 70.45 million raw material, Rs. 30781 million
finished goods, Rs. 15,83 million traded goods to determine adjustments that may be required to be made in the value
of inventory and consequential effect thereof 1o the financial statements as at March 31, 2020.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specilied under seetion 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further deseribed in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statemenis” section of our report, We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics” issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our andit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter - COVID-19

We draw attention 1o Note 49 (o the financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2020, which describes the
uncertainties and the impact of COVID 19 on i) Carrying value of receivables, inventory, Right to Use assets and ii)
Company’s ability 1o meet contractual ebligations including debt repayments, as assessed by the management, The
actual results may differ from such estimates depending on future developments, Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

mher Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board of Directors report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statemenis does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion therean.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is (o read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The Board of Director’s report is not
made available 10 us as at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is respensible for the matters stated in section 134{3) of the Act with respect 1o
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in aceordance with the
provisions ol the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that sive a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial stalernents as a whole are free
from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
5As will always detect a malerial misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decizions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticisim
throughout the audit. We also:

a}  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sulficient

AN APPrOpriale 1o provide a basis [or our opinion. The risk of nol detecling a matenal missiatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional
orissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order (0 design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference o linancial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

d}  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 1T we conclude that a material
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
ol the audit and significant audit lindings. including any significant deficiencies in interal control that we identify

uncertainly exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such diselosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence ohtained up o the date of our auditor's report. However, fiture events or conditions Ly

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statemenis, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial stalements represent the underlying transactions and evenis in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2006 (“the Order™), issued by the Ceniral Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" g statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section [43(3) of the Act, we report that:

ia)

(b)

{c)

id)

We have sought and except for the matter deseribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,
obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and beliel were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

Except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper
books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account:

Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in
our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as

(e}

(g}

amended;

The matter deseribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in lerms of Scetion 164 (2) of the Act;

The gualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the Basis for Qualitied Opinion paragraph above;




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

th) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference (o these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Reponl in “Annexure 27 to this report;

{i}  According 1o the information and explanation given by the management, we reporl thal remuneration
of the Director for the year ended March 31, 2020 is in excess of the limits applicable under section 197
of the Act, read with Schedule V thereto, by Rs 6.81 million. We are informed by the management that
it is in the process of seeking approval of the sharcholders for Rs 6.81 million in a general meeting by
way of special resolution.

{1} With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Reporl in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations iven to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements - Refer Mote 39 io the Ind AS financial statememnts;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

i, There were no amownts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & AssJﬁntm LLP
Chartered Accounlants
[CAI Firmg Registigfs

Number: 101049W/E300004

njay Bachchani
Partner
Membership Mumber; 400419

LDIN: 204004 19AAAACY 1732

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 26, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Re: Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (*the Company™)

(1} {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets were physical verified by the management in the previous year in accordance with the
planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion. is reasonable having
regards to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. Mo material discrepancies were noticed on such
verilication,

(e} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovahle
propertics, included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company.

{ii} The Company as part of its policy performs physical verification of inventory bi-annually in September
and March every year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. The management had
carried out physical verification of inventory as al September 30. 2019, No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verilication. However as explained in the note 49, the management could not
perform physical verification of inventory as at March 31, 2020, therefore, we are unahble 1o comment on
discrepancies, if any, between physical and book records as at March 31, 2020

{iii} According to the information and explanation given 1o us. the Company has not granted any loan secured
or unsecured 1o companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, the provision of clause iiital, (b
and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given o us, there are no loan, investment
guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies { Acceplance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

(wi) To the best of cur knowledge and as explained. the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
ol cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act 2013, for the product/services of the Company

(wii) {a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, emplovees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise. value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us. undisputed dues in respect of provident fund,
employees” state insurance. income-tax, service tax. sales-tax, duty of custom. duty of excise, value added
tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statwlory dues which were outstanding, at the yearend, fora period
of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as follows:

Mame of the I'\‘:ﬁﬁre of

Amount Perind to which Due Date Date of
statute the dues

p | amount relates payment®
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{viil)

(ix)

(x)

(=i}

(%il)

INR 33.51 30/09/72017

million

[ncome Tax AY 2017-18 Mot yet paid

Income Tax  Act,
1961

*Mo demand has been raised by Income Tax Department,

te) According to the information and explanation given to us, dues of income nx, sales-tax. service
tax/goods and serviee tax, custom duty, excise duly, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute are as follows;

Forum where

Name of the MNature of Amount Period to Due Date dispute is
statute the dues which amount pending
| I relates
C.5.T Act, Central MR 1.05 FY 2016-17 O3071/2020 Senior Joint
1956 read with | Sales Tax million Commissioner

West Bengal
VAT, Act,
2003

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management. the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank. The Company does
not have any dues to in respect of debenture holders or government.

In cur apinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Com pany
has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and Fair view of the financial
statements and according 1o the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no
fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the vear.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, we report that remuneration of the
Director for the year ended March 31, 2020 is in excess of the limits applicable under section 197 of the
Act, read with Schedule V thereto, by Rs 6,81 million. We are informed by the management that it is in the
process of seeking approval of the shareholders for Rs 6.81 million in a general meeting by way of special
resolution.,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3xii) of the order

(xiii)

{xiv)

E v gl o ) 4 () 1AL L 1 R B TV ATV

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence. reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and, not commentedfupon.
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{xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of
Companies Act, 2013,

xwi) According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable 1o the Company.

For 5.K. Batliboi & Associ
Charlered Accountants
1CALG o er: 101049W/E300004

s LLP

Parine
Membership Number: 400419

LIDIN: 204004 19AAAACY 1732

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 26, 2020
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF VIKAS PUBLISHING HOUSE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
{“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finaneial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating elfectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals over financial reporting
with reference to these finaneial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidanee Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over linancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
malerial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating efTectiveness of internal control
bused on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment

ot the risks of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 1o these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal linancial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable
detail, aceurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
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reasonable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepled accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets thal could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal (inancial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
fmancial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstalements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, prajections of any evaluation of the
mternal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 1o these financial statements (o fulure periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness
have been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference Lo these financial statements as at March 31, 2020

a)  As explained in the note 49, the Company. could not perform physical verification of inventory at the vear
end. due to which we are unable to comment an operative ineffectiveness of internal controls in relation to
physical verification of inventery and reconciliation of phvsically inventory with the inventory records,
which may potentially result in material misstatement of inventory values in the books of account.

A *material weakness' is a deficiency. or a combination of deficiencies. in internal financial contro] over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects. maintained adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements as of March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. and except for the possible effects of the material weakness
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2020.
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Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited. in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143{10) of the Act, the financial statements of Vikas Publishing
House Privaie Limiled, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the related Statement of
Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended. and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, liming, and
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2020 financial statements of Vikas Publishing House
Private Limited and this report affect our report dated June 26, 2020, which expressed a qualified opinion on those
financial statements,

r Sanjay Bachchani
Partner
Membership Mumber: 400419

UDIN: 2040041 9AAAACY 1732

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 26, 2020
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Vikmy Puhlishiqg oy Frivaie Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss Ter the yenr ended 31 Morch 2020
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(Comprising Profit { Loss) and Other Comprehensive Ineeme Toe the perind)
AT Earnings per equoity share: L
[ 1) Bnsie [2A424) 1,573
{2} Lriluted (Z424) 1,575
Summary of sigmiticont sccomring policies 21
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Vikas Pulitishing Mowse Privite Limited
Cash Mow statement for the Period ended 31 March 2020

TN, UT48990L 1471 PTCMST6GR (Amusint in million}
For the vear caded For the yeor ended
31 Mareh 2020 3 March 2009
A, Cash Mow fromm operating activities
[Loss W Frallt before 1ax {127.4% 11117
Adyustmsen to reconcile profit before s o net cash fows:
Pepreciation and  nmontization an 52 724
Employee slock oplion expense - 033
Adstaunt wnlzen back (11 14593
Intzrest expense 106,49 1503
[nterest income {090y {3.63)
(it ¥ Eass on sale of property, plant ond equipment (et {0.06} 01l
Bad debisd Amoant written off .82 D9z
Frovizion for slow moving inventory 754 -
Provision far douba il advimces D0 -
Provision for expected eoadit lass 5.20 1351
Operating profit befere worling capitnl changes 10241 314,09
Adjstments foe chamges m working copitnl
[recrease in tiade receivabbes 285 #4357
Increase in isther ron-current es3cis and in otker current assats {0.44) (5.67)
{lnerense)’ Degreass in loans & ndvances R 0.47
Increase in inventories (112.25) (78.55)
Deerense!( Increase) in other fnancial assets ™. 16 (63,46
[Decrease)Increase in rade payalles (105.52 1&E 9
Mecrense in other financial labilitics [13.1%3 (3199
{Decrease Fincrense in other carment liabilities [2.09) 313
Increase in leng tenm provisions 7.7 3.0
Cash generated from operatinne 167.83 Jasqan
frcome 1ax pard [15.62) [83.08)
Net eash genernted lrom aperation A} 152.21 190.43

. Cash fow from investing activities

Purghase of propeny, plant amd eqmpment, capiial advances and capilsl {2730 {60.93)
work in progress {net of copial creditor)
Procoeds fram sake of property, plant and equipoen iF 50 itk
Inkzrest received .44 J63
Neteash used in investing activities (B {2627 [57.22)
C. Cash Now From fncing activitics
Frocsedi{ Bepayment) for long-term barmowings net ] (13,79 .30
Hepeymiert from shor tem bosrowings (ned) (185,163 (39 48)
Fayiment of lenss leability {26.44) -
Ente reat padd (99,11} (119,05}
Mercash waed in financing sctivities {C) {32450 (152213
MNet increase in eash & cash vguivalents (AR (198 56 Q0,00
Cash and cish equivalents - a1 the begitning of the vear 202,56 11156
Cask and cosh equiivalonts - at the end of the vear 400 202,56
Components of cash anl cash egmivalents
L 4 FHIES (R
Halance with banks on cumem accounts 395 13604
Chagques m land - 5408
Total Cush and eash eguivabents {refer pow 500 4.0 20256

Now-cash investing and financing transaction
Arquizition of propenty, plam and equipment by imeans af 8 Nonnoe beese . gl

(Thie xmuce fay heen brcaitoenntly foft bilaark)




¥ikas Publishing Howse Private Linited
Cash flow statement for the Period ended 31 March 2020

CIN, U74399DL 1971 FTCINET6E [Amouni in million)
Far the year cnded Fur the year ended
31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
Muotes:

I Recancilintion of labilities arising from fnancing activities

{Amount in million)

1 As at Cash As at
|
Farticulars 31 March 2019 Mows 31 March 2020
Lo termi borroswings Oncluding curreni MLy ) 48530 L1379 471 .51
Shoit term burrowings 439 82 (185 14 254,66
425,11 (198,05} 726,17 |
Sumitiary of significant accounting policies L1

he aecompanying notes are an inteeral parl of the financizl siaements,
A5 et our report of even dake
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Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(]

2.2

Corporate information

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1936, The Company has head office in Delhi, corporate offics in Moida,
Uttar Pradesh and warehouse in Sahibabad, Utlar Pradesh. These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly,
these Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounis and disclosures related 1o the
Company anly,

The Company is primarily engaged in printing and publishing of college text books, school books, and mass market
baoks and provides job work services to its cuslomers,

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial stalements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, {as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division (1 of Schedule I 1o the Companies Act, 2013,
iInd AS compliant Schedule 111}, as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),

The financial statements are presented in “INE™ “Indian Rupees™ or 2" and all values are rounded to the nearest Million
(INE 1000000}, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when:
s Itis expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cyele
o tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
» [t is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or vsed to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting pericd.

AITOIRET 55015 are claseiiied ae non-current,

A liability is classified as current when:

s It fs expected (o be settled in normal operating eycle

v ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

0 ltis due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

®  There is no unconditional right o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Mates to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.3

2.4

The operating cyele is the time belween the acquisition of assers for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is alse the Company’s functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash,

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spor rates at the

date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated st the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair
value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that

the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 1akes place either:

& inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantapeous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous markel must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A [air value measurement of'a non-financial asset takes into account a marke! participant's ability to senerate econgmic

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant (hat would use the
assef in s highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurament as a whole:

o Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Motes to financial sintements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

s Lewvel 2 — Waluation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value messurement
is directly or indirectly observable

#  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unohservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether mransfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of signilicant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity setlled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

Al each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of asscts and liabilities
which are required to be re-imeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company's management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation (o contracts and other relevant documents,

The Company’s managemenl, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, alse compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fait value hicrarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value, Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes,
i, Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions {Mote 2.20)
i, Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hicrarchy (Note 46)
iii,  Investment in unquoted equity shares (Mote 54)
iv. Financial instruments {including those carried at amortised cost) (Mote 44)
v.  Eguity Settled employee share hased payment plan (Note 48)

Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred o the

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects o be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria_described below must also be met before revenue is

recognised.

Gioods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excludad fram revenue.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in Note 2.20.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met belore revenue is recognised.
Sale of poods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the carrier for (ransportation.
P




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
MNotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Amounts idr_l_!__q!:l_iun R!_.I_EE, unless otherwisze stated)

The company considers whether there are ather promises in the contract that are separale performance obligalions o
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated, In determining the transaction price for the sale of boaks,
the company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-
cash considerations and consideration pavable to the customer (if any’).

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates, The provision for turnover
discount and cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Variahle consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration 1o
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained unlil il is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to customer of cash
rebate/discount if payment is cleared within specified due dates,

s Rights of return

Cerain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates as this method best prediets the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration
that can be included in the transaction price.

s Volume rebates

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the value of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract, Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely
amount method [or contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
maore than one volume threshold, The selected method that best prediets the amount of variable consideration 13
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected
future rebates,

¢  Cash rebates
The Company provides cash rebates to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated

lime given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.
The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises

d reFind THRBT Tor The CRrected TUTire rebates,

Contract balances

Contract assers

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred 1o the customer. 17 the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
ol time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation o transfer goods or seovices to a customer for which the Company has received
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Amounnts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

PN

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. |f & customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract [ability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract,

fnterest incone

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount cutstanding and the rate
applicable for all financial instruments measured al amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is regorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropridte, 1o the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset, When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expocted cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expecied credit losses. Interest income is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss,

Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the [ndian Income Tax Act, 1961, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generales taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity ). Current tax items are recognised in correlation 1o the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the wx returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and esiablishes provisions where
appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except;

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of zoodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not & business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

TARABIE Prolil or 1653

* In respect of taxable temporary dilferences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible emporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused ftax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent thal il is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
tunused tax losses can be utilised, except:

»  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction. affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 4
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2.7

= [n respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assels are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable thal suificient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be wilised,
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferrad tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the repurting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in squity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabifities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists 1o set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impaimment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing paris of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are mel,

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly, Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit
or loss as incurred,

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured relizbly,

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible assel are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future econemic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the assel is derecognised,

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leaschold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata

basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful
economic lives of the asset,
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Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule IT |

management ,[

Plant and equipment 15— 25 vears 15 vears |
Office equipment 5— 15 years 3 years
Furniture and fixiure 10 years 10 years
Vehicle - 10 years 8 years
Computers 3—fHvears 3 years
Electrical installation 10 years _ 10 years
Building [including factory building) 4 — 60} vears 3 years

Leaschold improvements are amortised over cconomic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less.
Assets costing T 3,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase,

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 201 3. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are vealistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at cach
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, i appropriate.

Intangible assels
Recognition und measurenent

Intangible assels acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition, Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried al cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurmred.

Amuortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indelinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriase, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amorlisation cxpense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profil or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite [ife continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful lifie from indefinite to finite is made
on a prospective basis,

Gaing or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible assel are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the siatement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s inangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (5 years) Amortized on siraight line basis | Acguired
over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | In-definile Mo amortization Acquired
combination
Copyrights Fimite (10 vears) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright
Content development (including | Finite (10 seasons) Amortized on straight line basis | Internally generated
In-house contents) over the period of contemt

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred, Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible assel when the company can demonstrate all the following:

#  The lechnical [easibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. lts intention
to complete the asset,

s[5 ability to use or sell the asset,

s How the asset will generate future economic benefits.

e The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.

®  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
assel o be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
assel begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. Itis amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

2.9

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of profit and loss during extended period
when active development activity of the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. It
also includes exchanges differences to the extent regarded as an adjustiment to the borrowing costs.
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Leases

The Company assesses al contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset lor a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company asa Lessee

The Company applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets,

1. Right to use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {i.e., the date the underlving asset
is available for use). Right-ofuse assels are measured &t cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received, Righl-of-use assels are depreciated on a straight-=line basiz over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful |ives of the assets, as follows:

Leaszhald premises 3109 years

2. Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments and amounts expected to be paid under
pesidual value suarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease ligbilities is increased to reflet the aceretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrving amount of lease liabilities s remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {¢.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

3. Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Cum}xanv applu:s the shon—tcrm lease rcmgnltmn exem ptmn to its short-term leases nruﬂ']-::e premises (i.g., those

i 2| cl o 5 d 1% Uit )
It also applles the Iease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered 1o
be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the Jease term.

Ind AS 116 ndoption

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts
existing on April [ 2019 vsing the modified retrospective method (altemative 11). Consequently. the Campany
recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
with cqual amount of right to use asset at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted. "4
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Inventories

Imventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
Costs incurred in bringing each produet to its present location and condition is accounted Tor as follows:

= Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurned in bringing the inventorics to their present
location and condition. Cost 15 determined on first in, first out basis.

« Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materlals and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

+  Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their preseni
location and condition. Cost is determined on Grst in, first out basis.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
récoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGLY Fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assers, When
the carrying amount of an assel or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and s written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
guoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases ils impairment caleulation on detailed budgets and orecast caloulations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company®s CGUs o which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate iz calculated and

RNl v LR LI LIRL T i L] VCal. LU [l ol -h TOTECT [y i L 'L"L;;"'.:F
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budpet using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified, In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries. or country or countries in which the

entity operates, or for the market in which the asset {s used.

Impaiment [osses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss,

Forassets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment [osses no longer exist or have decreased. Il such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGL%s recoverable amount. A previeusly recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determing the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited 5o that the carrying amountaf the asset does nof exceed its recoverable amount,
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nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
caried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Gioodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrving amount, an impaiment
loss is recognised. Impaiment losses relating to goodwill cannet be reversed in future periods,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 10 a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost. fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit ar loss,

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial assel’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them, With the exception of rade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind
AS 115, Refer to the accounting policies in section Revenue from contracis with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI it needs to zive
rise to cash flows thal are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount cutstanding, This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows thar
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers 1o how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash lows, The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractuai cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assels classified and measyred at amortised cost are held within

4 business model With [he objective (0 hold linancial assels in order to collect contractual cash Nows while linancial
assets classified and measured at fair value through OCT are held within a business mode] with the objective of both
holding to colleet contractual cash flows and selling,

Purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the assel.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are ¢lassificd in four categories;
= Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
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» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCT) with recveling of eumulative gains
and losses (debt instrumeants)

» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with no recyeling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets at amartised cost (debt instroments)

A *Financial asset” is measured af the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is (o hold assets For colleeting contractual cash flows,
and

» Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPL) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amertised cost using the cffective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit
or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financinl assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCIE) (debt instrumenis)
A “financial asset™ is classified as at the FVTOCL if both of the following criteria are met:

= The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and
= The assel’s coniractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
vatlue. Fair value movements are recopnized in the other comprehensive income (OC1). Howsver. the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
tecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity w P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)
All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading

and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as al FVTPL. Fur all uther equity mstrumems t]-uz gmup ma:..r make an wmmcable eleclmn to present

by-instrument basis, The ::Iass:lﬁcat]nn is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

|f the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC| to P& L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carded in the bal sheetat fair value with net changes in fair

wvalue recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
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This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classily at fair value through OCIL. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established,

re-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

# The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through® arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contral of
the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it ¢valuates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvernent. In that
case, the company also recognises an assoviated liability. The translerred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the [orm of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
otiginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
io repay.

Impairment of Mnancial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impaimment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e  Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

= Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOC]

= Lease receivables under Ind-AS 116,

= Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 115,

& Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

i Einancial guarantes contiacte which.are nat-msasused-ps-at-EI TR0

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables, and
. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 1 16.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the eredit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
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a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to récognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument, The 12-month BCL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulls from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are duc to the Company in accordance with the congract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider;

s All contractual terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment extension, call and similar options ) over
the expected life of the fnancial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.

s Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision mateix o determineg impairment loss allowance on portiblio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-locking estimates are analysed, On that basis, the Company has
estimated provision of 9.65% is required to be made on cutstanding receivables at the reporting dare:

Age bracket Mot due OD-215days |[215 — 365|365 — 730 | More than 730 days
days days

Credit Loss Rate 0% 2% 7% 86% 100%%

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as incomedexpense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under thie head “other expenses” in the P&L, The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is deseribed below:-

a)  For financial assels measured as al amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assels in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Lntil the assel meets write-ofT eriteria, the Company docs not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross cartying amount,

by Loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, 1.e.

a5 A (TEnT.

c)  Debt instruments measured at FYTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflecled at fair value, impaiment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impaimment
amount” in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in eredit risk o be identificd ona timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial iabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and horrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an efflective hedgze, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables. net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For lisbilities designated as FVTPL. fair
value gains! losses attributable to changes in own eredit risk are recognized in OCL These gainsfloss are not
subsequently transterred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and bormowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilitics are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
infto account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral par of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings,

Financial puarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts thal require a payment to be made 1o
reimburse the holder for a lass it incurs because the specified debtor ails to make a payment when due in accordance

with the terms ol & debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liabiliny at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee, Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd-AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial iability {s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
ol an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the de-recognition of
the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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1.14

Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company delermines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognilion. Afier initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assels which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if thers is a change in the business modal
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent, The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Com pany
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the firse
day of the immediately next reporting period following the chan ge in business model, The Company does not resiate
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabililies simultaneously,

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. Ifthe contribution puyable o the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid. the deficit pavahle to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asser
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in funre pavment or a cash refund,

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to 2 separately
administered fund,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit methad,

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assels {excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recagnised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Hactcomdueuisti-treree e rmro o ks T e T e e

= The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
*  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the unconsolidated statement

of profil and loss;

® Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

#  Met interest expense or income.
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2.15

.16

2.17

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected 1o be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-lerm employes
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

Provisions
reneral

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obli gation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a relinble estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all ofa provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisians are discounted usi ng @ current pre-tay rale that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the
passage of lime is recognised as a finance cost,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shart-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject o an
msignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of eash at bank and in hand and shaort term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounis are caleulated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 1o equity shareholders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

.18

.19

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate
laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity,

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Schedule |11, unless otherwise stated.
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2.20 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses.
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures {including contingent liabilities). The management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Lincertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of assers
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A, Judgement

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease. together with any periods eovered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option 1o
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

For the lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether il is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option 1o renew or terminate the lease, That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise cither the renewal or termination,
After the commenvement date, the Company reasscsses the Jease term if there is a significam event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option 1o renew or to
terminate (.g., construction of significant leasehold impravements or significant customisation to the leased asset),

HRevenue from contraels with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timin g
of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of books include cash rebates and volume rebates and a right to return the poods thar
give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are nat constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions, In

addition, the uncertai :

B. Estimates and assum ptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below, The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Com pany. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur,

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised ta the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised, Significant management judzement is required to determine the amount of deferved tax assots
that can be recognised, based upon the Iikely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future ax
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planning strategies,
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and morality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensilive to changes in these assumptions, All assumplions are reviewed a1 each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In delermining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that carrespond with the expected term of the
defined benefit obligation.

The mertality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response 1o demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 31,
Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to caleulate ECLs for wrade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (ie., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by lotters of credit and other forms of credir
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company s historical observed defaull rates. The Company will calibrate
the mattix to adjust the historical eredit loss experience with forward-looking information, For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product} are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing seetor, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic condlitions and ECLs
is & significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. For details of allowance for doubtful debts please refer Note
5a.

Impairment of non-finanecial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end

of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (*CGL) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs 1o sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
# pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the assetor CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped topether
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (*CGU").

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverahle amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins, Cash flow projections take into aceount past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developmenis,

Estimating variable consideration for right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates
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2.2

Certain contracts for the sale of books include a right of retumn, volume rebates and cash rebates that give rise to
variable consideration, In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected
value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitied,

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of goods with a
right af return, volume rebates and cash rebates,

Leases - Estimating the ineremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities, The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have fo Pty
to borrow aver a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value o
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company *would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need o be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the [BR using observable inputs (suchas market interest
rates) when available.

Exceptional item

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement that are of such size, nalure or
incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance for the period. Materiality
threshold can be used to select items to be disclosed as exceptional on case to case basis. This threshold would be
applied separately for standalone as well as consolidated financial statements. However, in case an ilem qualifies for
disclesure in standalone financial statements but not in consolidated financial statements or vice versa, this would
need to be evaluated on case 1o case basis the above analysis, mai nly following items would be evaluated for diselosure
as exceptional items:

a)  Reassessment { Change in life of asset (in case of re-evaluation of business/product, impact of all assets specific
tor that business/product to be considered for applving the threshold).

b} Provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of non-current investment.

e} Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount, as
well as reversals of such write downs.

d)  Incase of other significant item of income or expense, not covered above, the same would be evaluated on a case
to case basis for disclosure under exceptional items

New and amended standards

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption
of this new accounting standard is described below, The Company has not early adopted any standards, amendments

that have been issued but are nol vet effective/notified,

Several other amendments apply for the first time for the year ending 3] March 2020, but do not have an {m pact on
the financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards, amendments that have
been issued but are not yet effective/notified.

Ind AS 116 Leases

fnd AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS
17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of 2 Lease). The standard sets out the pringi ples
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases
on the balance sheet,
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‘The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method (alternative 11 of adoption with the date
afinitial application of 01 April 2019 and accordingly comparative figures are not restated. The Com pany elected 1o
use the transition practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at (11 Aprl 2019, Instead,
the Company applied the standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applving Ind AS 17 and
Appendix C of Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions
for lease contracts that. at the commencemen! date, have a lease term of 12 monthe or less and de naot eontain a
purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value
assets),

Accordingly, the Company has recognised a lease liability as at April 01, 2019 for leases previously classified as an
operating lease applying Ind AS 17. The lessee shall measure that lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Further, an amount equal (o the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
balanze sheet as Right to Use (“ROU™),
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T'he effect of adoption of Ind AS 116 is as follows:

As on transition date (01 April 2019): Amount in million
Asset

Righi o use asset DE.39
Liability

Lease liability 98.39
Impact on statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2020
Increase in depreciation expense 23.33
Increase in finance cost 854
Drecrease in other expenses (26.44)
Increase in loss 5.73
Impact on stalement of cash flow March 31, 2020
Payment of lease rentals 20,44
Met cash flow from operating activities 26.44
Payment of lease rentals (26.44)
Met cash flow from financing activities {26.44)

Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax ireatments involve uncertainty that affecis the
application of Ind AS 12 [ncome Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of nd AS 12, nor does
it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain lax treatments. The
Appendix specifically addresses the following:

¥ Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separalely

#  The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of fax treatments by taxation authorities

#  How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates

# How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one ar more

other uncertain tax treatmenis a ;

The Company applies significant judgement in identilying uncertaintics over income tax lrealments.
The Appendix did not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company.
Amendments to Ind AS 109: Prepayment Features with Megative Compensation

Under Ind AS 109, a debt instrument can be measured at ameortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding” (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for thar
classification. The amendments to Ind AS 100 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of an
event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the coniract and irrespective of which party pays or receives
reasonable compensation for the early termination of the contract,
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There were no such transactions in the company accordingly, these amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

Amendments to Ind AS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to Ind AS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement oceurs
during a reporting period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs
during the annual reporting period, an entity is required to determine the current service cost for the remainder of the
peried after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event. An
entity is also required to determine the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using the net defined benefit liability {asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan
and the plan assets afier that event, and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company as it did not have any plan amendments,
curtailments, or setilements during the period
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4B, Right to use asset (refer note 32)
{Amount in million)
Right to use Right to wse
{Leased Hold Land) (Leased Assets)

Total

Cost

ATDL April 20018 - - -
Purchases - 2 .
Disposals - » =
At 31 March 2019 = " -
Purchases - 08 .40 OF 40
Adjustment - transler from leassheld land 6525 - 63,25
Lsposuls =
At 31 March 2020 65.25 95.40 163.65

Aceumulated depreciation

ALOT April 2018 - . :
Ammogtization for the year - - -
Disposaly - . =
Al 31 March 2019 - - -
Amortization for the year 1.E5 23.33 24,48
Adjustment - transfer from leasehold land 342 . 342
Dusposals - - -
ALI March 2020 4,57 23.33 27.89

MNet block
Ar31 March 2020 Gll.68 T5.07 135.75
Al 31 March 2019 L = :

(This spesce has been intentionalfy fefi biami)
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5. Floancinl assets

A, lnvestepenls
(Amwaunt in million)
As at Asat
31 Mnreh 2020 A1 Murch 20419

a. Investments at cosi
i Investments in equity shares {Unguoted)

Investnients in subsidiartes of its holding company

4500 (Previous year 4900 shires of Bs. 19 each fully paid up in M/s New Seraswati T0.00 TOD
House (Tndia) Privide Limited
1) (Provious vear 100) shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Mfs. Safar Digital (.0 000
Fducation Tnitiztive Private Limited

o0 T0L00
Current = .
MNon-Current TiLAG 70,00

SB. Trade receivables
(Anwunt in millioa)
Asat As at
31 March 202 31 March 2019

Trade receivahles
Secured, considered gond - »
Unsecured, eorsidered good 121325 44018
Receivable which have significant increase in credin risk 79.77 Th 49
Recaivable credif impaired . -
1,303.02 1,525.68
Less: Allowance for expeeted credit loss
Secured, considered good : *
Digerured, considered good - -
Beceivable which have significant increase in credit risk (79.77) (75 49)
Receivable credit impaired o "
{79.77) [T6.49)
Med trude receivahles
securced, considered good - .
Lingegured, considesed good 1,223.25 | 449 19
Fecervable which have significent increase in ered:t risk i 2
Recervable eredit impatred - -
1,133.25 1,449.19
Lrade veguivahles T colated paetles (oo for note 330} ittty TS
Current 122335 444,19
Mon-Current = s

The movement [n impairment of trade recelvables as follow:
(Amount in million)
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2010

Upaning badenee Th49 37
Additions 521 3351

Write off {1.53) [ 14.52)
Closing bilance .77 7649

Mo trade recelvable ane due from direstors or ather officers of the Coenpany eilher severally or jointly with any sther persan,

9 l-' i / L-.“-.-.—w..--""
New Dethij— @-
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5C. Loans
{Amigunt in millipw)
A% at Asat
31 March 2020 21 March 2009
Securily deposits - non current 17116 (R
Liss: Provision for doubiful advances {410 -
16.76 11,44
Security deposits - Current 6.21 217
Advances recoverable incash or kind (refer note (1) below) 1592 11.43
Total Loans and advances 3889 3500
Current 2213 13.60
MNon-Current 16.7% 1144
Mote (a)
Advanees recoverahle in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good 15.92 2143
Unsgeured, considered doubdfl - .
15.652 21.42
Less: allowance for expected credit loss - -
15.92 2143

SD. Cash and cash equivalents
{Amount in million)
As at Agat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Balances with banks

« Chiy derrent aceounls 3.95 13609
Cash on hand 005 1.49
Cheques on hand - £4.98
Total Cash and cash equivalents 4.0 202,56
Current 401 20756
MNon-Current = -

S Other financiul assets
tAmount in milliva)
Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Margin monsy deposit {refer note a below)

Llepubestriesidthenoettiia e et o a0 6,33

- Depasits with remaiming maturity for more than 12 menths (.86 2.62
Total other financial agsets 511 7027
Current 4.28 7635
Mon-Corrent L86 292

Note (a)

1. Margin money deposils with a carrying amount of Bs, 4. 4% million (31 Mareh 20059 Rs 4. B8 million} are subject 1o first changzs to
secure the company's hank guarantics.

i, Margin money deposits with carrying amount of Rs. 0.63 million (31 March 2019 Rs. (.59 milliony is subject to Registration of
P VAT & DVAT.

ifi. Margin money deposits with carmying amount of Rs, Nil (31 March 2015 Rs. 74.51 million) has besn carmarked agunst the 1.0
taken from lndusing Bank.

-

7 ‘
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4. Toventories

{Amount in million)

AS at
31 March 2020

Asat
3 March 2019

Raw malermls
Printing material
R materials others
Work in progress
Traded goods
Finished goods

Less: Provision for slow moving inventery (refer note 28)
Total Inventories

Current
MNon-current

{Tuis spcnce s heen intantioneliy fafi blami)

44 81 [LENEH
2530 23148
25 -
4.85 1.31
15,83 1380
17,81 437,10
508,04 486,69

(27.54) 5
571.40 48569
STLAD 480,69

5k -




Vikas Publishing Hotise Private Limited
Motes to financinl statement for the vear ended 31 March 2020
CIN: L4850 L1971 PTO005 766

%

TA.

TEB.

7C.

Dither assets

Cupital advances
{Amuind in milliea)
Azl Asat
31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2']!9__
Unsecured, considered godd 1.00 .00
Total capital ndvances 1.0 1.0
Prepaid expenses
{Amount in millien)
Al ol Ayt
_ 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Prepaid expenses (Mon carrent) I.13 L1
Frepad expenses {Current | 11.5% 1114
Tutal prepaid expenses 12.72 12,28
Current 11.5% 1115
Mon-Current 2,13 2.1

Lcome tax asset {nel)

{Amasunt in méllign)

Ay st
3 March 2020

Asat

3 March 2009

Advance income tax (et of provision)
Totwl

Curceni
Mon-Corrent

Deferred taxes

18.9% 23,44

1590 2144
1.42 -

17.57 22.44

{Amdunt in millign)

As at
31 March 2020

As at

31 March 2019

ltems lewding to erention of deferred tax pssets

Impact of expenditure charoed to the satement af profit and foss aecount m ihe current 5% T.76
vers bul allowed for tax purposes on pavment basis o subscrueent years

Provision tor doubtful deht 1518 2R
Luosses available for offsetting against futurs taxable income 45 28 -
sy Lishiliy 2033 .
Fatal deferred tax nssets .36 30,04
[tems leuding to ereation of deferred tax linbilities

Figed mssers: impsct of differences belween s depreciation and  deprecistion’ 7370 56,78
amartization chirged in the financial statements

Total deferred tnx labilities 3,70 56,78
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 1266 (26.74)
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9%

Shre Capital
{Amon | in millien)
As al As pt
21 Muprch 2020 31 March 2019

Authorised
65,000 (31 March 2019 63,000} equity shares of s 100/ each f1,50 .50
Issued, subseribed and fully puid up
200140 (31 March 2019, 40,140) equily shares of Rg 00V gach 401 4.01

4.01 a0l
& Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginalng and at the end of il reporting year
Equity shires Mombers {Amount ln miflion)
Issuedd, subscribed and fully paid op
As al 1 Aprfl 2018 40140 4.
Imoreased Decrease) durng the year - -
Asat 31 March 2009 40,140 4,01
Increasel Decreasz) during (he yeir - -
As 0t 31 March 20240 4, 148 4.1

b Terms' rights attached Lo cquily shares

The Campany has only one class of eqiity shares having a par value of Rs, 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares s entithed to obs voee per

share, Mo dividend has been propesed by the Board of Directars during the year ended 31 March 2020 (3] March 2009 NIL)

In the svent of

lquidation of the Company, the helders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receie remgining assets of the Company, after distribution of all

preferentinl ameunis. The distribution will be in proportion e the number of equity shares held Ly the shareholders

¢. Share capital hedd by bolding company and its subsidinries

(Aot n million)

31 March 2020 31 March 20019
5 Chand And Company Limied 3493 393
Mirja Publishers & Printers Privite Limited, Subsidury of the Holding Company .08 (i

d. Detnils of sharcholiers holding more than 5% efulty shaves in the Company:

Mo, of shares held % No. of shares held

5 Chand And Campany Limited, the Holding Company

Az ot 31 March 2020 39,339 whity
As al 31 March 2019 A0 350 SR%
. (ther Equity
(A mowni in million}
Asal As i
31 March 2020 31 March 2010

Retained carning

Batanece as the Beginning of ieporing perod it =05 5-a0
Add: Profits for the year [u7.20) 6304
Add; Dcher comprehensive income during the year 081 14.42
Balnnce as the end of reporting period 1,330,291 1,416,649
Revalpation reserve

Baknce as the begmning of reponing period 5.2 51.21
Ineremsed Decrease) during the v - -
Balance as the cod of reporting perisd 51.21 S1.21
Gerernul reserve

Bulnnce a5 the beginning of reporiing periad 46,301 A 50
Increased Decrense) during the year 2 .
Balnnee as the end of reporting period A3 4630
Deemed enpital contreibution

Bulanee ag the bepinning of reporting periosd 4.11 174
Ingreased Decrease) during the vear . .33
Hulnnce as the end of reporting period 4.11 4.11




Vilas Fublishing Howse Private Limdited
Mites to financial statement for (he year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: UT4899DLISTIFTCO057 66

Matiire and peirpose of reserves

A, Revalestion reserve
The comparry has recognised revaliation reserve on revaluation of land and building.

B. Genernl reserve

Under the: erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was cresied through on anmual transfer of net mcome a2 a specified percentope in
aceordanie wit applicalble segulations, The purpase of thess ransfer wos (o ansire that (o dividend distribution in @ given your is more tham 10% of
paid-ug capital of the company for that year, then the 1otal dividend disiribution 15 less than the rotel distributable resels for tha yer Consequent o
miroduction of Companics Act 2013, the requerement to mundatorily transter o specified perceniige of the nel pralit 1 gereral neserve has been
wilhddrwn. However, the amount previously tansleered 1o the general reserve can be utilised only i woeordance with the specifte requirements of
Cmpanics Act, 2013

., Deemed caplial contribution
Lreemed capital coniribeition represents Employes sioek option (ESOP) cost allocated by the paren LCompany for stock options fsared 1o employees of
the Company

(This xpace s bean itentionally left Slank)
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I, Borrowings

A, Mom-curvenl borrowings
{Amount in milliom)
As at A5 Al
3 March 2020 31 March 2009

Term Loans

Foreign curreney loan froim hanks {secured) {reler node bond & below) . -
Inndtizin Bupese boan from banks {secured) refer note 2 and ¢ balow) 15896 4607
Indian Rupee koan from fnancial institetion (secuned) (refor nefe f, 2, 1 and k below) - 737
Indian Bupee loan from rabused party {Holding company - unsecared ) {refer i j below) - 266,00
Vehicle Loana

Ittedian Rupse Jonn from banks (secured) (refer note d and e below) PR T8
Indinn Ripee loan from financial fnstitation {secared) (refier note b below) - 3.56
Total Non-current borrowings L¥L0S 31378
Secored 13905 57,78
Unseeured - T

Fron bank includes -

i Commpany has iken 10 Morigare Loan form Inden Bonk iz FY 200920 (ha carvies foating intesest gt 11.80% pa. 12 is repayabis in 120 egual
mienahly instalments starting from Apeil 2020, 1t is seoured by equitsble morgage on industrial property eswned by the kalding company 5§ Chand And
Compary Limited, sifunted at 40/2A. Shibabad Industrial Ares - Site - 1V, Sahibabad (P ). The Jean i o secured by parsonal guarnies of two
directors, Mr. Himanshu Gupta snd Mr. Dincsh Kumat Jhanjhnuwal and corporate juarmntee of § Chand And Company Limited. Due to COVID - 19
buink hos allowed o morstorum peried For EMI for the monihs of Ageil 2029 10 Asgust 2020,

»

b Company has taken faecign cumengy term loan from REL Bank Limiled (s FY 201819 which carries mlersst al 0050 fra 0w repayable in 12
quantly instalmenis, starting from Junuary 2049, It is secursd by fest parl pussu charge by way of hypothecation ea entive curent assets inclusive ol
stock and book debis, hath prosent and Tuture, first pari gassu chargs by way of bypothecation on entice movahle Gxed nssets, btk presenl amd filune
tesetuding those exclusively eharged 1o other lenders) and corporate pusranies of § Chard And Company Limited [nberest is (o be paid on maathly
brsss, Principal and imerest bath ars fully hedged by RBL Bank Limsted. Due to COVID - 1%, Bank has allowed the monsiorium periog for the
cpunmierly imstadonent due for the month of Apil 2020

e Comgany hes tilsen loan against propenty from Deutsche Bank m FY 201819 which carmes floating mmeerest rde rnging between 10.75% 500 1.30%
fa i repoyable in 120 cquated maonthly estalments, starsing from Mareh 2619 Tt is secured by equitable mongage of propary bearing no, E-2%,
Sector -8, Noida (LR} Due o COVID =19, hank has nliowed 8 morateinm period for EM for the months of April 2020 10 August 2020

d.  Company has tzken vehicle kran from HOFC Bank Limited which carries inerest a1 9.50% pa. It is repayable i 60 squaled manthly isalments,
starting frem May 26 1 is sscured by hypathecation of respeciive vehicle

e Company has teken vehicls loan from ICIC] Bank Limited which carnes intereat at 9.26% pa. 1 s repayable in 36 equited muonihly instalmenss,
starting from by 2018, 1t is secured by hypothecation of regpective vehicle

Fram finnneial institutions inchides =-
I Compury hus taken [ndian rupee term lonn from Tita Capital Financial Services Limited in FY 201930 which carries imtsrest o long term lending
rilcs loss 823% pa |t is repayzble in 7% mondhly instalments plus interest on reducing balance. starsing from Ociober 2019, It is soeused by sauis

(3 [ty 4 T x e + oahibahad {LL1], corpirale pusmatse of 5 Chand And
Ewmpany Limited snd peesonal goosantee of Mr, Himanshy Gupta and Mr. Dinesh K umar Jhunjhnuwaln. Due to Coviet - 19 elfect, financial insmiuon
beas allowed the marttariom period for the principal and interest dus far the mants of April and May 2020

2. Company bus taken three term boan from Siemens Financial Services Private Limited for purchase of mackines durng the FY 201718, which carnes
interest (@ 11.30% pa It is repayable in 36 equated monthly instalments. 13 is secured by Bypothesofion of respective machines and corporate
yuarzies of 8 Chand Aud Company Limited

b, Company has taken vehicle foan from Daimber Financial Services Provate Limited which carrses interest at 9% . 11 15 repavable mo 36 Monthly
ingtilments, staing from Seplember 2007, (1 1s secured by hypathacudion of respective vabicle

L Company bad taken three term foans from Siciens Financial Services Priviee Limited during FY 2015 -16 and 2016-17 for parchase of machines,
wieh cueried interest tanging between 15% 10 13% poa. 18 s repavabile in 33 to 36 equaied monthly instalments. It was sscured by hypathecation af
reepective machines and Corparste Guaraniee of § Chand And Company Limifes) Compuny nad made isierest free refindable secunty depasiis of Rs
233 Millien e kender, which is included in o cursent security dzposit in Mote 5C a3 on 58 Maseh 2020, Out of these ke leans , one loon was fully
repaid during the year 2018-19 and rereaining twe loans were fully repaid during the yeae 207920
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From related porty includes :-
|- Company e taken an opuenally convertibls loan of amowding Rs. 466 Million from & Chand And Company Limited in FY 201718 which cirricd
inicrestaf SRI2 veor MCLR plus 250 basis point. Tenn of lisen was 3 yenrs. Loan was convertible at the option of the borrower after one year ond {7

riod convened on or before thiee yenrs, the lean was o be repaid on the completion of three years. Compaay had reprid Rs. S0 Million during the year
TNT18, Rs, 150 million during the year 2018-19 and the remaining smaunt hid besn fully repaid dunmg the vear 2019-30,

Lol covennnis

ke The Company is reguired 1o comply with certain debt covensiis as menfoned in the Loan agresment, failure of whech makes the foan 10 ke sepaid on
chemand at the diseretion of the bank. As at March 31, 2020, the Company: could ot mset some of the debl covertnts pnd neeordingly the entire loan
fram RBL Bank Limebed snd Tors Capital Financiol Services Limited have been classified dnder "current maturity of long term berewings”

i spee dheew B itteniricacliy St btk
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B, Corrent berrowings

(A ount in million)

As at Asatl

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current maturity of long term borrowings
Term Loans
Foreizn curreney loan from bunks (secured) (refer point k of note 114) 37,50 137.50
Indian Rupee loan from banks (secured) il 278
Indian Rupee loan from financial mstittion {secured) {refer poing kol note 114) 235,55 20,08
Vehicle Loan
Indian Rupee loan from banks (secured) .64 58
Indinn Rupes boan from financial institulion (secured) 363 0.57
Total current maturity of long term borrowings 33146 16151
Cash Cradit
Indian Rupee loan From bank {(secured) {refer note g below) 134.66 35982
Working Capital Demand Loan
Indim Ropes loan fiom bunk (sccured} (refier note b below) 100,00 BOLOG
Total current borrowings AHT.02 .33
Leess: amount presented under "other linancial Babilitics” (331 46) {iG151)
Med eurrent borrowings 254.66 430,81
Securcd 154.66 43082
Unsecured - -

Campany has tuken cosh credit fagility from HDEC bank, DBS hank. BBL Bank. HSEC Bank and Standard Chartered Bank that cisrries
ilerest w MCLR plus spread (ranging from 1.30% 10 2,15 %) p.a which are repayable on desmimd. Cash credit Fecility availed 1o the
extent of sanction limit, is secured by first pari passu charge (by hypothecation) on entire existing and future current nssets and movahle
lixed assets (exelwding those specifically charged 10 ciher lenders) and corporate guarantes of § Chand And Company Limited and has
becit considened as scoured. Company has given the personal suarantes of Mr. Himanshu Giupta and Mr. Dinesh Jhunjhnuwala o HDEC
bink against the Tecility wp to sanction Limit, Company has repeid the loi to HSBC during FY 2009-20

Working cupital demand o from HDFC bank, [YH% bank, RBL Bank and Standard Chartered Bank cirries imlerest ranging from 8 75%
to 10, T0% poa which are repayable on maturity, Working capital demand lean facility is a sub limit of cash credit facility and secured by
the same security as provided in cash credit fazility mentioned in point ne. a above,

. Trade pavables

(A mount i million)

As ot As af

31 March 2020 31 March 201%
Non-Curreni
TFIE payabies otlier Ln Micto CRerprises and small enlerprises - i
Current
Trade payables of micro enterprises and sanall enterprises (refer note 35) in.k3 539
Trade payehles other than micro enterprises wnd small enterprises 464 41 FRY.48
Total trade payables 501,24 G14.87
Curreni 501,24 61487
Non-Corrent = S
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134, Lease fiabilities
{(Amount in million)
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Lease liability (refer note 12) 80.79 -
Total lease liabilities £0.79 i
Current 20,04 .
Mon current 50.85 -

13B. Other tinancial liabilities
{Amount in million)
Ay at As at
31 March 2020 31 Marceh 2019

Currenl maturity of long term bormwings {refer note 118) 33246 161.51
Imierest acerned but not doe on borrowings 167 5.13
Payabie 1o employvess 373 44.91
Tatal ether financial liabilities 36786 211.55
Current 67.86 211.55
Non current - -

14. Provisions
(Amount in million)
Asal As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Provision for gratity 2187 15.05

Frovision [or leave encashment 446 .

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) (refer note 507 33,51 3351

Total provisions 5064 531.50

Current 33.93 33.51

Mon current 25.11 19.05
15. Other liahilities

{Amount in million)

TSI ST
3 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019

Other payalbles:

Stalutory dues 17.28 2107
Advance lrom customers 16.14 14.44
Total other liabilities 33.42 35.51
Current 3342 35.51

Mon current _ - .
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16, Heveoue from confracts with customers
{Ameunt in million}
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sale of manuvinctured products
Finished goods 1,291,12 1,611.87
Less: Discounts {363,74) [282.49)
937.38 1,329,358
Sale of services
loh work 247.37 407.62
Foyalty income .75 1.0
248.12 40262
Sale of traded gonds
Books 2002 2224
Paper G801 Td.36
Less: Dizgeounts = (3.73)
BR.03 GLRT
Oiber operating revenue
Scrap sales 2197 28,23
21,97 2823
Votal revenue from contracts with costom ers 1,285.50 1,855.10

D¥isaggregated revenue information
Setout below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers,
{Amonnt in million}

Segmend For the vear ended 31 March 2020
Fullizhing Frinting
Type af good aor service
Sale ol manufactured poods B55.65 T1.73
Sule of traded gonds 20,02 G801
Serap sales . 2187
Job wark (printing of hooks) - 24737
Content & rovalty income (.75 -
Total revenoe from contracts with customers B6.42 409,08
India BTa42 40008
Oatside India - -
Total revenuoe from contracts with customers #76.42 404,08

Timing of revenue recognition

CrO0US (TS TeTrec il & POInt in fie BT5.67 161,71
Services transferred over lime 0.75% 24737
Tuotal revenue from contracts with costomers 87642 400,08

(THis speree has been intentionally lefi blank)
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(Amount in million)

Sepment For the year ended 31 March 20019
Pohlishing Printing
Type of gond or serviee
Sale of manulactured aoods 118221 147,17
Sale of rraded goods | 852 T4.35
Scrtp sales 237 2586
Jish wark (printing of books) - 40162
Comtent & rovalty income 1.k 1
Tuotal pevenue from contracts with costomers 1.204,10 G901
India 120410 4500
Chutside India - =
Total revenue from contracts with customers 120410 549.00

Timing of revenue recognition

Ciods transferred ut a point in time 1,203,160 24739
Services transfierred over lime 1.0 401.62
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,.204.10 645901

The Company collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the Government on sale of certsin books and on services, Henwe, GST
is ot included in revenue from contracts with customers

Contract balances (Amaount fn million}
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2009
Trade réceivihles 1, 22325 144819

Contract liahility
Advance lrom cusiomer b6 14 14,44

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and ure generally on temms af 150 davs. For the vear ended March 31, 2020 e 520 mallion
{March 31, 201%: Rs. 33.51 million) was recognised 15 provision for expecied eredit losses on rade receivables.

Right to return asset and refund linbility {Amount in mifllon)
Mareh 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
Refund liabilities
ATising from diseounts 170.07 10683
Arising from rights of relum 31537 09,22
485.44 410.05

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of prafit and loss with the contracted price
{Amount in millien)

Teeverue & per eonlcacted price 205905 2,753.50

Adjustinenis
Hales returm (481} {el4.17)
Discoumnt {363.74) (286.23)
1,285.50 LBS3.10

Performance obligation
Infornation about the Company s periarance oblinations sre summarised below

Manufactured goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods w the tramsparter desipnated by the customer or o the castomer
whichewer i carlier

e customeer has an right 10 return material to &y extent as may be agreed upon with each customer or within the limits a3 may be
determined by the company. The customer is also eligible for urmover and additional discounts based on achievement of revenue targets
as may be agreed.
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17A

ITH

Services

The performance obligation s satisfied upon delivery of the job work goods o the customer,

{ther income {Amount in million)
Fuor the vear ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Finance income

Interest income

-om bank deposit 153 2,47
-0 tax refiund - 0.78
=na athers - .06
Linwind of interest on security deposils 0.37 (32
Toral finance income (A) 0.90 303
Other income

Foreign exchange differences (net) - 111
Lease remtal meome 078 -
Arpount written back ([N 4,59
Gain on sale of property, plant and cquipment (net) .06 -
discellanecus moome 2.47 200
Total other income {B) 13.42 770
Crand Total (A+B) 14,32 11.33

(s spvace has been mfentionally lef blark}
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14, Coat af rpw material consumed
{Amount in million)
For the yvear emded  For the vear ended

3 March 2020 31 March 2019

Invertories at the beginning of the year 1061 HAT
Audd : Perchases during (he vear 34323 442 16

35384 450.53
Less - eosl of sales of paper {67.79) {T3.76)
Less - Inventorizs 81 the end of the vear [44.81) (10,613

24124 66,16
Details af raw material purchased
Paper 343.23 442 1k

343.23 442,16

19, Parchase of traded goods
{Amount in millisea)
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 200%
Inventories af the beginning of the vear | 380 |7 46
Addd - Purchises during the: year TEID Ah 35
93,10 EIER1]
Less @ Inventanes an the end of the year {1583} (13 B0)
T6.36 L2

20 Cost of printing material consomed

{Amaunt in million)
For the yearended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Inventories &l the beginning of the yvear 2188 j2.82
Add | Purchases during the year L1644 16477
140,32 177.59
Liss © Inventories at the end of the vear (25,3 {23.88)
114.593 133,71
Details of printing material purchased
Prifting bindmg materiul | 1644 164,77
116,44 164,77

NEW LJETl‘1| / /
-}'_.- ..-. . L
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21 [Increase)Trecrease in lnventories

{Amount in million)

For the year ended
31 Murch 2020

Far the year ended
31 Miarch 2019

Inventories af the end of the vear

Finished goods ST R 43710
Wosk in progress 485 131
S12.66 438,41
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 43710 35586
Work in progress 1.31 1E 17
438,41 36703
Incrense in inveniories (74.25) {7138}
Dreiails of inventores [Amount in million)

Fuor the year ended
31 March 2020

For the vear ended
31 March 20109

Wark in progress

Printed material for books 4 15 1.31
4,85 1.31
Finished gonds
= Manufnetared goods
Bopks 507.81 43710
Traded pands
Boaks 1541 13.80
523.64 450.90
Raw material
Faper A481 1061
Frinting material 25.39 384
Oihers 025 .
.45 34.49

{Thiz space hay Bocs infenitionally Joft Bk}
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I3

4

15

Publication expenses

{Antount in million)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Printing and hinding charges

Royalty expenses

Onbier publishing expenses

Freight inward

Pucking expenses

Power & fug|

Repairs and maintenance - machinery
Total publication expenses

Employee benefit expenses

96.049 124,72
36.59 2794
an.o8 20.24
252 4.10
26.13 36,06
46,43 5538
32.32 3283
271.08 313.23

{Amount in million)

Fur the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Salaries, wapges and bonus 300.22 33738
Emploves stock option expense (refer note 48) - 033
Contribution to peovident and other Rinds 18.29 19.38
Gratuity expense (refer note 313 6.0 1068
Staff welfare expenses 1016 13.29
Total employee benefits expenses 334.67 381,06
Selling and distribution expenses

{Amount in million)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 Mareh 2020

31 March 2019

Advertisement and sales promotion
Meeting & conference ¢xpenses
Travelling and conveyanee

Freight and forwarding charpes

Book workshop expenses

Taotal selling and distribution expenses

Finance cost

201 28.93
4.51 1117
52,80 a4
41.37 45,42
GED 15,82
128.68 169.75

{Amount in million}

For-tiveyrar ot F o T YT e

26

M March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest 10649 | 1503
Bank charges 3.50 612
Total finance cost 10999 125.15

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

{Amount in million)

For the vear ended

For the vear ended

31 March 20240 31 March 2019
Lrepreciation of property, plant & equipment (reler note 1) 3.8 32.57
[epreciation of right to use geset {refer note ARB) 24 48 -
Amaontisation of intangible assets (refier nate 44) 43,13 24.67
Total depreciation and amortisation expenses 99.52 57.24
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7

{Hber cxpenses

{Amount in million)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the yvear ended
3 Muarch 2009

Commurication cos 289 6.32
[ent (refer rote 32) 100 3632
Rates and taxes 0.5% 0.9%
Insurance L1.66 LI
Repairs and mainlenonce.
e 0.36 145
~Oithers 14,80 13558
Printing and stalionery 207 142
Legal and professiongl fee 1815 I, 88
Meamagentent expenses (refer note 41) [4.87 2135
Payment to suditor (refer details below) 13 108
Secuniy expenses 2 HE 7.32
Fereign exchange difference (net) 0.8a .
Corporate social responsibility expensis (refor npde 4i0) ila 5.00
Dvirector sitting foe 018 030
Dioeration o8] 460
Armeount seritten off .82 ez
Provision for expected credit fnss 5.20 3335
Provision for dewbtlul advances .di E
[reome tax penalty a2 -
s oncsale of property, plant and equipment {net) - IR}
Mizcellanzous expenises (.33 098
Tuotal other pxpenses U7.55 16813
Payment to auditor {Amouat in millian)
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 220 31 Muarch 2019
As audilpr
Aucit fes 180 1.80
Limifed eview e 1.O3 105
lis wther enpacity
Chug of packel expenses 2% 0.23
3.13 308
I8 Exceptional item
{Amount in millicn}
For the vear ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for slow moving inventery 2734
27.54 -

L TRTT

n

antd &z a3 vezull, the Company has fusther redue
of Bz 27 54 nullion ss exceptional cost

Components of Other Comprebemsive Income (OCT)
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive ineome by each type of equity 15 shawn below

For the venr ended 31 March 2020

cd the valuation of ceraim bitles o their current reslisable value and recorded sdditionn! provision

|Amwont in milliom}

Hetained earmings Totl
Fe-mensurement gama{Tosses) on defired benefil plans 108 1.8
Tax impet on re-messurement. gainsilosses) on defined benelit plens (01 {0.27)
(&3] 0.81
Far the year ended 31 March 2019 {Amwunt in million]
Retained earnings Tt
Re-mensurernent gamstlosses) on defined benefi plans 20,34 20034
T impect on re-messrement gains{losseshon delined benefit plans {5.92) (5.92)
14.42 14.41
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M Earnings per share

4]

The Tollwing reflects the ineome and share data used in the busic ard diluted EPS catptations
{Amount in million)
For the veur ended

Far the yenr end ed

31 Mareh 2020 A1 March 200%
Prefit atrribwatde 10 eguity bolders of the company Q7 29 ENIE]
Weighted average numbar of equity shares used for computing Earning per Share {Rasic & Diluted ) 40,140 40,140
Basic EPS (Amount in Rs.) (2424 L5735
Criluted DPE {Amaan in Bs.) (2.424) L3795

Ceratuidy oo ather post- employment henefits plan

Thie Company his @ defined benefit pratuity plan. Under the gratiity plai, every employes wha has completsd nenst five years of service gees o gruiuily
an deparure 2l 13 doys of last drawn salery for cach completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject 10 & maximum of Rs. 200
million, The scheme is funded with an msurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

Tl Follarwingy tables summanze the cemponents of net benelii expense recognised i the profit and lass pocaunt and amounts recognived in e balance
sheet for Graniity Plan.

Sratenient of Profit & Loss acoount

Mot em ployes benefil expense recopnised in employee cost: {Amount b million)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 Muarch 2019
Cumienl gervice cost i 81 207
Interest cost on defined abliganon 1.9 283
Expecied returm o plin assats {0.55) {0.22}
.00 168

Amount recognised in Eiher Comprehensive Tneome: tAmount in million)

For the year endedl  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 Murch 2012
Acduarial (gzing] / losses on obligngion {1.23) {20k 20k
Actuarial miins ¢ losses) on as5e1% {0, 15% 0,14
(1.08) (20.34)
Balnner sheet
Changes in the preseat valug of the defined benefit obiligation are as follows: {Amount in naillion)
Far the year ended — For the vear ended
31 Migeel 2020 31 March 2019
Chpening Sefimed benefit ablipazion 26,27 IT 02
Currenl service cos 461 207
Interest cost 1.94 283
Henzfits paid from plon assels {126} (08
Beneiis pind dircetly by employer {129 {£T)
Actnal [gamsi/ losses on obligation {1.23) |20.20)
Closing defined benefit obligation 2804 26.27
o 2 7 ——— —— [Xeioanl in millon)
For the year endesl  For the year ended
31 Mareh 2020 3 Mareh 2019
Opening faer value of plan asseis 723 2.85
Expected netum (.55 0,22
Contributiens by emplover . 00
Benefis paid {1.26} {098
Actuanal goinloss) {815} 14
Clasing fair value of plane assers .37 .13
Current Partion i 5
Mon - Cureent Portion L7 1504
> -
= Lo . . R
o |New Delhij~ iy ¥

A
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The Company expects tocontribare Rs, 0,46 million (31 March 2009 Rs 203 million) 1 plan psses:

The major catesories of plan assels as o percentage of U fir value of total plan assets are as follovs:
Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 51 March 2019
Investinents swith insurer 1005 s

The econumic and demographic assumptions used in determining gratuity ablipations for the company’s plans ore shown below:
For the year eniled For the year enided

31 March 2024 3 March 2019

Diizcount rate 6. T% T.10%%
Expectad rale of relurn on nsseis 6, 78% T.70%
Expecied rate of salary incnzpse A% Al
etrement Ape (In years] 6l yeirs 60 years
Employes iumover (-

- Agge ugn M years 3.00%4 3.00%

- Ape 31 - years 20H% 1.00%

- Ageabove 44 years - 1.00% L.00%
Wionality Ruge LIC { 1994-48) LI (199455

Lt and Kaodok LHtimate and koomk

The gstimates of futune salary iereases, condicdérad in acteuriol valuntion, take account of inflation, seniorty, promotion and other relevant factors, such
as siply and demand o the employmesil markel

P overnl] expesied rie of retwm on assels s determined based on the market prices prevailing on that dute, applicable 1 the period over which the
obligation 12 1o be sariled

The impact of sensitivity analysis de to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions on the defined benefit obligation
{Asaunt in fmillion)

Change in For the yvear eniled For the vear emled

A5 PLEHNS 31 Mureh 2020 A1 Mareh 2019
Discount rae - 1% .64 3
- 1% 308 079
Expecied moe ol salary incrnsase + 1% 3199 LN h
- 1% 467 2330

The sensativity analyses above have been determined based gn o method that extrupolates the impact on defired henefi
ailiyideon as o result of reasonable changes in key assumptions ocourming al the end of dhe reporting period,

The fedbbwany payments are expecied contributions 1o the defined benefit plan in fuluse years
fAmount in millian)
Far the year ended For the year caded

31 Mureh 2020 31 March 2009
Year | [ 213
Vear2 &6 0,52
Year 3 £y [LA2
Year 4 0.6 1,47
Year 5 1.29 0.86
Year bgo 10 9,73 .35

The average duratson of the defined benefit plan obligation at the ead of de reporting period 35 1525 years (31 March 2009 18,76 yesrs)

(Thix apoce has been pateranally feft Alank)




Vilns Pablishing onse Private Limited
Nutes to financial statement for the year endt 31 March 2020
CIM: UT4B99D L1971 PTOMST6G

321 Leases
The Compieny has adopted lnd AS 116 "Leasss’ from 15t April 2019, which reslied in changes tn acenunting policics in the Anancial sticments,

Transition
Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” s upplicd the standard to all leise contracts existing on 01 April 2019 ysing e
daoi fied rebrospective Julternative || yappooach. Compirstives 83 at dnd Tor the yesr ended 11 March 2019 brve nol heen retrospectively adused.

O transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recagmition of Right of use asset (ROU) of Re. 9840 dullion [excluding lepschaold land of s
G1.84 million) with 2 eorresponding lease lnbility. Ind A5 116 has resulled i e increass in cash inflows from operating activiies and an inereiss in cosh
autflows frem fnancing activities on account of bense poymenis

Tha: Following i the summary of practicol expedients elested an inilinl application;

L Applying a single discount rate 10 a porifolio of leases with reasanably similar characieristics.

2 Applied the exemption not 10 recopnize right-f-use assots and liabilities for Teases with fess than |2 monihs of lease term on the dite of initial
applicntion

3 Exeluded the inival dicect costs From the measureineml of the Tight=nl-use zzsetal the dale of inial application

4 The company has s skected not b renssess whether o contract is, o conlzing a lease at the date of inilol application, [nstead, for contrucis entered
imin hefare the iransition date the company relied on its assessment mage spplying Ind A% 17 and Appendin e Ind A5 |7, Determining whether an
Arranpement comlains o Lense.

The weighted average incremental lorrowing rate applied o Toass fisbilities as a1 |51 Apal 2009 is 10% with maardy betvween 202 13006,

set out helow are the carrylng smount of right (o use ssees recoenised and movement during the vear {Amuount in million)
31 Mlarch 2020 31 March 2019

Cpening balance A1.84 -
Adidition 9840
Lizpreciation expense 2448 -
Closing balapge 13575 -
Ser dut bebow is the corrying amount of lepse linbility and movement during thi year {Amonnst b million
31 March 2020 31 March 201%
Cipening balanes v -
Addition QE40 =
Avcretion of iiferes| RR .
Payment 26,45
Closing halance a0.79
The Bllowing are the amouni recognised in Profit and Lass: {Amount in million}
31 March 2020 31 March 2009
Deprecetion expense of tight 10 use gssels 2448 -
Imterest expense on lease liahility BB -
Expensa relating 1o short term |=ases (included in other expenses) 1.0 E
Total amount recognised in profic and loss 34,32 -

31, 220 {March
, 20210 March 3

The Coampany had tmal eash outllow For leases of Rs. 2645 million (1 March
sdebuty RIS i el O W TR s

hE

0 i

The Company has sverd lease contricis that inelude extension mnd lermination options. These oplons arc negotiatzd by maragement @ provide
Mexibilivy in managing the leased-asses ponifoio and align with the Company  business needs. Management exercises significant Judpament in
determining whesher these extension and ieomination opticns are remsonibly eertain e be exercised

The company dogs ot fisse a sigaificant hguidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as he current asters pre sufficient to meet the obligatrons relaed
fir lease liabilities a5 and when they fall due

Rental expense neeorded for shom-tern leses veas Rs, 1,00 million for fhe yearr cnded 3 1 March 2020

I apzpregate depreciation g 30 azsets has been inchuded under depreciution and emomisation expense in the Statement of Pralit end Loss,




Vikis Poblishing House Private Limited
Motes to financial siatement fur the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: UT4ERDLIST P'TC00ST 66

33 Related party disclosurve

S3A Danmes of related parties and related porty relationship

Helated parties where control exksts
Halding Coampay

Belated parties with wham trunspetions have taken place during the year

3 Chand And Comparsy Limite

Fellow subsidinrics

Emterprise over whach KMP or their relatives
exercise signi ficant infleence

Key Manogement Personne|

Blickie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limiced

Mew Saragwati House (Inden) Private Limited
BPI{ Indm) Private Limiled

Mirja Publishers & Ponters Private Limiied

Safan Digtal Education Initiatives Privace Limieed
135 Driggital Privane Lamited

8. Chaisd Edutech Privie Limiled

Eurasia Publishing House Private Limitzd

Chhava Prakashant Private Limited

indian Progressive Publishing Cr P Lid

Haoel Tourist
S Horel Tourmst Deluxe Privacs Lirmited

Mr. Himanshu Gupta, Direcior

M. Dineesh Kumar Thunjhnowaly, Divector

wr. Gauray Komar Thunphnwwala, Whide Time Dircctor
bdrs. Savita Gupta, Wikele Trme Directar

Mr. Rajagopalan Chandroshekho, Independent Director
M5 Archann Capoos, Independent Director

b, Ceep bishra, Director

{1l 02 Movembes, 2018)

Mr. Maveen Rajlar, Chicl Executive Officer

{w.ef Tth Fehroary 20200

(Vi sproee st boen smentiopwniy -l Blawk)




Vikay Publshing lloose Privale Limaied
Motes to finansinl srasesaend G thie yewr ended 31 Msrch 2020
LM L9 1971 PT-OMETa6

Fill - Belnbed paty praninclions
The: Fallwirss 1ol provrdes the otk amount of transecroes ghat luve b vl inte with relaied parties S dhe relevant finaneial year PAmneint i o)

Enterjiciy awnid or
sipnificasily anMaeicod 3
Yenr Esded ':Tw"? " ::r" b ley management HWP:II_::::". Tadal
T ; Bk personnel o iheir
relntives
Satle of Goods {publishing and Priotingy Sevices
5 Chmsd And Company Limzied 31 Mazch O3 BEAOE - . " 18503
31 March 10059 1I4 44 - - . 11444
5. Chasd Edwiech Private Lissed 31 hlareh 2000 & TAT d = 747
31 March 2015 - 1T = c 76
Haw Samawan Higa (Tndia} Provcite Lamiied 31 March 2020 . S - - 54.00
A1 MAanes 2005 = 11445 - = 13445
RP {iadhal Provave Limeszd 31 Mlarch 2030 - - - . .
Al thareh 2019 - il u . ER]
[¥E Dripine? Privale Linuoed 31-hrca 2020 - [eR . - nez
31 Melarch 2016 - - - - -
Sadars Prgaral Febocatiom Initiative Trvate Limiled 31 Mareh 2021 3307 2 . 5347
I Miarch 2008 4, 4HE - 0 3.5
Miria Poslshers & Proters Privane Limined 31 March 2020 - (.13 - | BR
11 March 208 - 18:91 - - 1691
Il Proarassive Publishing Co Privace Limited I8 MEaigh 2020 . oal - [
3 Manch 20 - - = - -
Chinsya-Prakushusi Privaie Lewdied 1 Miarch 2020 - 944 - - 1044
31 Mwreh 2090 0 B4 3B - 8 1%
Fale of paper
Chhana Prakashess Privine Limsied 3 Manch 220 - sE01 - - aE 0L
31 Maieh 2019 [ T L - T
Benusnpration paid {including perquisise)
Cauray Kumar Jiwnjhinnwals AT March 30 - - - 147 F57
A1 Masch I009 - - 817 217
Maven Rajlani 31 March 2000 - - . 1248 1258
31 Mlarch 351 - = = 12.78 1378
HenEY (riptn 31 helarch 20008 - - . o [rE]
31 Marck 2015 - & 704 7.94
Eapenimes incurved by ghe rebaded porty on behall of tee Comgasy
5 Chand Azd Company Limin! 31 March 2020 (=N [} . - - win
31 Nharch 2010 1024 - - " 1324
Expriises incmved b the compasy en behal of the nedaied party
Chsavn Prakashan Privame Laied 31 Murch 2020 - (et - za
I Mdgrch 2009, = - - -
& Chand Aud Cumpamy Limilod 31 Marzh 2020 4 - e
31 Maich 2019 Lol = - han
Furchase of Capited Coods
5 Cranl Edutech Privae Limited 38 March 2020 - Q08 g
3L Mairchi 20014] - . - - -
Salle of Caplisd Doode! Servicen
5 Cared Anil Company Lswried 3 March 2020 i 40 - = - |50
I Mench 2608] 036 - - [
O Dhggetal Privdte Lasiied 31 Mpnzh 2030 s 0og s nn2
31 Maach 3084 - - - - -
Royabty pai
5 Chasd Aol Cosspany Limised A1 Masch 2020 0I5 5 - . [H3:L!
1 March 2005 027 - - - 037
G (indis] Peivare | sl 31 March 300 . [EE] E . 52
31 March 2015 " 035 - 155
Purchase of Paper
& Chand And Company Limieed 31 Mareh 2020 = . & .
31 Margk 2015 545 - 5 536
Moy Rarmswan Howe (Indieh Frsme Lismed 51 Marck 2020 - = - -
31 Marek 20170 - 41K - v [T
- e
5 Chanl And Compamy Limied 31 March 2020 1767 - - 17457
31 Miarch 2018 2468 = - . 2au8
Chhs Prakashem Privale Lomiied 35 March 2020 - 345 . 348
I Miarch 3019 - 05 - nas
SC Howed Tourist Deluxe Provane Linised 3§ March 2020 - - - . -
3 Mareh 20189 - . 115 - LEL]
s Publishins & Prinjens. Proaie Limsed I Mareh 2020 - 131 B v 14
11 March 2019 - 121 - 411
Salan Dignad Bducanan Privase Eimied 3 Bdmreh 2020 - 122 P . 01T
I Bderch 2019 = B2 = v B0
Er we sfuch updinn ex
5 Clsd And Company Limited 31 Bdacch 2620 2 W E 3 -
1 Kdmech T0ES 11 - - 035
Rt pvinl
S Chand And Comgpdany Linueed 31 hasch 20008 T . . - o7
A1 Plirch 2009 05 - - 0Ok
Interes pxpense
5 Chand Axed Company Ll 31 March 20004 12 = - . 1231k
31 Betarci 201 5] 41 3 - . - A3 86




Wikas Putstshing Honve Privte Linded

Modes te fliancial siatement for the year ended 51 Marcl 2020

Lk UTERDL T T CE TG

[3|lr.<ll'|rndh| Balanees ai nb dhe year ! LA in |l1|'|'ﬂm1|
Eilerprises onwed or
. slgrdliemily influenced .
Year Enilsd c',::i::}_ 5"$'i:"ﬁu b by maaieng pesen ML?:::;"" Tanl
persoise] or iheir
relanivid
| Trade Receivabls
5 i And Compaay, Laskied 31 Mmpch 120 mTE} . TR
31 Merch 208 Hhasy . - 11697
5 Chend Dducech Prosws Limmned 1 Masizh 'Hlia - T - 15%
31 March 201 - 241 - - am
Mises Sarmswile Moose (Indin) Prrrie Limsed N1 Melarcn 20304 . 171551 B E: 11
51 sarce 2010 - 25248 - - 23208
AP lndia) Prevae Linntad 31 Mareh 20620 - L5607 = 45 4T
20 March 2004 = 450 s . ELARH
i Publiban & Pracers Proaie Lonsed M Dmrch. 2020 . * F 3
31 Moreh 2010 15 ik L 174
Safan Duginal Edustion beeciasive Privace Limited H Ilarch 2050 E Aone EHEH]
31 Maroh 20is v T - - T
Ilndl.uuil’-ru_:.nw-m'I'uhll:lluu],l:umpwh.-. Lid 51 Blareh 3000 = . -] =
31 Marek J00% - = J -
D Lnggieal Prosite Limined #1 March 2020 - {LEE - asl
¥1 March 201 0| - - - - -
Chhays Prakasham Frivaie Lmiied 30 Mdmreh 2020 - R X LN
31 Murch 2012 - 1% = 0
Advamen Tesm custamers TR
Fiwj Publishers & Primens Bosss Limied 31 Marah e . 481 - - 4.8l
3T Pelasih T0FH - 0 - -
memmnuﬁnmhk-
% Charul Al Company Limited
31 March 202 - - - -
3 March 219 200 00 - - A
A1 fanch 2020 T 00 . A
31 Mebareh 2009 3000 . s | 50410

Wt g o Been inmesndde fof dimd,)




Villss Publishing Hosee Private Limited
Notrs to fancea] statement for (e vear ended 31 Mireh 2600
CiN: UTERDODLIOT] FTCMETRG

3 Capitnl & olther coanmitments

| Amsiin ki sl
Wlarch i, Warch 3L,
24z 19
Relming o the puchpses of machimery snd offfer aguipmant 01 s
Fieleting 1o Bxpont Prameman Capiesl Goods commitaens 009 2339

35 Dutails of dees i wicro, smabl nod medivm enterprices ss defiued undes the MSNED Act, 2006

fAmouml e millim)
Macch 31, 2020 March 31, 200%

The prncped mncung a8 il inkerest dise terecm {10 be shown aepiwabely) resmainuny wipsid 4o any

supplier s ar the end al exch accouniing vear
+ Pnzipal nmount die b migr snd small enternrises
- Irsprest due on ghown

K1 k] bt L]

3643 1539

Thie wminnt o iieresr piid by the buyer 0 e of sestion 16 of the MSMED A 006 abang with the - -
secnmts. o the et made 10 the supphier beyand the appeised day duning each acoqunting wee

Ve amaunt oo rererest duse and payable foc the peried ol dalay in waking payment (awhich have been pard E 5
bt beyond the appainied day during the yeard b withoes wdding the imssresl spacified under the

MSMED Acce 20006

The amaunt of further intenest resamng due ond prsalde even in the wixueding yenrs, undil such date
whvert I ontesest hies iy above are actually paid 1o the small enberprise for the purpase of disall e

as o deductible expenditure under seation 23 af the MSMED Acf 3005

& Unbedged foerign currency espesnre

Wi avwritit 0 fareign careney sapasure tis o fot Fadged by duivative insrumess i athorwise as on 31 March 2050 and 11 March 2019 e & W

Amooal in foreligs carrency Al in [NR {mdl]

Forelgm enrrency Mrrch 31, March 31, Mnrch 31, March 31,
] 01y Mz 201 0=x
Adlvamee from Cistamner BED = EL . it .
Trace Paynblz CiHE el 1350 0% oo
(£ {5} - BI9TsT i #d
“Exchunge Race for 31 March 2020, | US03 = Rs 75.23, | GBP =Rs. 9327
** Exchangu Rae for 31 Mezeh 2009, | 1ISD = Re 23z, 1 GIP = Rs, 92,23
37 Espesditure in foreign ewrreney {accrunl hasis)
Ui in million)
Mareh 31, March 31,
2020 20
Trawelkny 2ed ennvancy LE] aTr
Publishing Experses - i)
Raw Mazerinl - fl B
[itspranr & Maswenanec - biachinary 0% Tal
Meehag & Conference 1) 118
Interest an Baper Credid noe k4%
Traiming Cxpenses g %6
A.85 &RB5
38 Imgpaeted and indcgesnns Favw ningerinls eossunsd
e —
Feecentage (%) {dmosni bn wmillinn)
Rar Mmierialy Mnrch 31, Miarch 300 Melnreh 31, Nlnrels 310,
Tz Pl 0E0 Y
Impared . I1LBE% - ol B
Endhipenoas H0H1 (KT 43 145 15a % A543

A Comkogen Hnbities

The exomperns has conlisgss liabikity read 31 March, 2020 (3 la March, 2009 as helow

| Corpany has receresd 8 natice in the vear 201920 froen Kallata VAT with dempad of s | 0% mollicn for the year 201617, Company has liled an appeal with St jors
Croesmessioner sgaiist this nolize
2 There are mamerous inberpretaive isues rliding s Ehe Supreme Cowort {50 paclyemient on Providen) Fund daeed 28ih Felnwiry, 2019 As g imalier of cautinn, the Compny has
masde & proniaiin oo o prospectivg basis from the e of the SC ards
3. Cotigany b the expon oblipaticn cotsiindmng as un March 31, 2020, aganit which the Company Fad saved the inpan duty eF s 2 T7 willion (March 31, 2000 fe 377
mallion)




W Caspuirale Socinl Responsibiliy (0SR)

{A moamt in millot

Mlareh 31, March 31,
2000 1L
[ Girerss smmaant resguaived 60 b spent by the Campaily durieg the year 4871 509
(B Ameunt speet by the Company during she year g 500

Al Masapesend Cosi
The Heldmg Company jenders varicen pd ve and e
halding compreny has changed Rs. 14,87 mollion {31 March 2019: s 222

atrices b its subsidiones commpanies 1o fcilifate i diy 10 day cperations aceandingly, (be ultimate
5 millim) tovards such seraces rendered during e year endid 31 March 2020,

A Sipwilican| customer

Reawnue from ane magar susiomer accaunted T amounting 1o Bs. 18608 wallion

aggregativg to 14% af ol revense {one s ot amaunimg 16 Rs 124 44 millan
aggregsing 10 7% ol otk revense for the year nded March 11,2019)

(T Apave e e fverm fovantiy Sl it
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Vilans Publishing Homse Private Limited
Mates o financial starement for e yeur ended 31 Mapch 2000
CIM: L7489 DLIITIPTCORS 766

a4

Fimancial Inatrunients:- Finaorin risk mansgenent objectives and policies

Thie Conpinrey’s pemneipa] finnnecial liubilsiees, comprise Joane and borrowings. rade and wther payables . The madn purpose of thess fnanial lisbilifes & 10 Grsmce the
Compnny’s eperations, The Company”s principal Tiasciol asiers inchede invesiments in equiy sleres md govermment seciritiess, advances 10 refased party, trde and
oilier reveavables, security deposits, cash and short-lern deposits that desive direethy from its operstions,

Thse Compary is expased to markes sk, eredic nsk and bogaidiny risk, The Cogmpssniy”s senior sranojgement oversees the management of these risks and ndvises oo
finsncial risks and the appropriate francinl risk governanee fFramewerk fzr the Campany. The bonrd rovides assumance 1o the shamehelders i the Caoimpany’'s
financinl rish aziivities are govemed by approprinie palizies and procedures and that Ananciol risks are fdentified, mensared and managed in accosdace with (he
Tempany's policies snd risk chjestives. The Board of Directors reviews snd apress potichs lor inanaging 2ech of these risks, which are summarised helaw

Muorkee Rizh

Market vk s the sk Ut the fair value of fanre cash Oows of o firancial insrment will uosste becauss ofchanges in market prices,

Market nsk comprises thees (ypes o nsk:-

.} Intesesi rate sk,

b ) eurreniey qsk and ather price risk, guch as cquity price risk nnd

. b ecammodicy risk

Financial imstruments nffecied by marker sk inchude lonns and homawiigs. investments, deposits, sdvances and derivalive Tinancial insneems

M sensitity analyses in the ollow i seeions relste o the position ae &0 31 March 2020 and 31 Muorch 2014,

Tlhe scuitivity analyses Fave botin prepared on the bosis that the amownt of oer deld, the miie of Noating 1o Tixed ivceest mtes oF the dehe and deivatives md the
prepastion of finanesal insicanents in foreign cumencies ans all consmnt in place o 31 March 2020,

The snabeses exchide the impaze of novements in ket vanubles on: the enrmying values of gransine and coler pos-retene abilsations; provisicns. The ensisivin
of the relevant profit oF loss Teaia die efTec af Be ussumed changes in respeetive markel risks

. Interest rute rish.

Isterese rate sk ds the risk that b Cair vabue or finure cash fows of @ Riancesl isirument will Moetuare beesuss of changes in markel fntsreat rabes. The Company's
expoaure 00 e risk of changes in market inerest st ralates primasily 1o the Comgpany s leng-term deht o ijations swith xed oiiores rmtas,

The Felfowang table demonsirates the sensmiivity o a ressonably posible changs i irterest rates. Wiith all other varinbies held constant, e Comipany's profit betore tim
i5 nifected theough the impact oo Monning e borrowings, s fallows:

{ A im million b
Increase/decrease in - Effect on profit Effect oo eguity

hagis points beFare tax WO
Ax at Mireh 31, 2020
INR Borowings +.5% (3.5
olb 5% 114
As at March 31, 2019
INR Bomowings 5 (30) .
.55 3.4 $

.. Foreigm etirrency risk

Fareiyn ewrrency rsk is the nsk that the fir valie or fuuns cash Ao of m eaposurs will fuchaate becanse o changes in farelgn exchangs mies, The Company's
axpusare o the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relarss primeriby o the Compony’s BRECILG aetivilies fwhen revenuz or expense B desominnted m o forsipm
canrengy) and financing activities { when boan is denciminnted in a forcign currency )

The company has done 100% hedyping v foreign currency expoaure sgainst financing aciivities, benes sensilivity anabysmis 15 nor required for fnancang acvines, m
which Company les foreign exposure;

The company does net hedye 15 foreign curenty exposure for npermting ncrivities, however the semzitivify analveis ds goven as below Bir the For the ewmenciss, i
which Company has forsign expasure

{Amaount in I'ﬁ?hlll

Changes in forcign  Effect on profit Effece on enquily

CHFFERCY Fubes befure mx (DT

Fuor the year ended Maveh 31, 2020
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I Credir Rish
Crof sk is the dsk et ccesserparty will nof mest i cbfipatians under a fisnstal fisiument or custmer conliac, eading (o fleancsal loss. The Company i 008 expesed fo any sionifkm
eredid risk from i aperating activities (primasily trady meczivables), indudsng deposils with banks and Keancal insfinitions, Sarign oy Iransactives amil cihi finacis istnmeils,

Tha Apeing ansyils of e seceivahles (mei) a5 of the reparding dase |5 as Tl bows:

(e ins amillinn)
Age Brackes Mt Due 8215 Dk 116-365 Dave SELTI0 Days More than 730 Bays Tazal
e 3 March o B | Tia Hik Y 643 B F D
A5 1 Mhanch 2009 1 B4 K} LTI 22,00 1257 4568 LA
. Laquidiy Risk
Liguidity risk &5 the risk that the company will aeointer g oty i mestieg ke dhliges  with 25 Rmanciad Habsiiva thet are seoded by dedivering el or asodser el wase
The Compren's dsjiecsive is o maiwan g balance b iy of Fandbing and Nessiulity throuph the uwse af bank cvordsafls, and bank fome The cimpoey’s eppraich o managng

liquidity oo exeure - s Far as possible; et it will bave sufffcient liquidity %o mees ies lnbsliy wheo tiey aee dice. under both noreal and siressed conidiion. without InEwTing unacospiable
Inisses. o risking damitiz 16 the Comparny's tepatmion. The Commpany clossly sanions i liguidit positicn and deskine a rabust cash mangenent sysiem. The Comgany ssanapes Fanding risk
by muincaining adequate reseras, Bosmusng lakiiics, by contmuaaly moriicrng forecast red nesnl ensh Nows, prodile of frsngial assess ond labilisies 1) eisiin adegale wuries of
fineancing inchutivss boens frem baoks ar an aptimised cast. The bl below provides she desits cugardimg; contrachisd mansitivs of financial labilies

(Amonmt b il
s at As
__ larch 31, 2020 _March 30, 2819
i Demand
Homawisgs 154 66 5582
15866 EEEE
Lessthan £ year
- Briswings 10000 B0
- Trade puyables 50024 G487
< Qther finsnchl lkabilizes ElL FiFEE]
69,10 0 43
Mure then 1 year
- Homoradngs 13905 32ATR
112103 32LTE
43 Capltal managemeni
b the purpase -of the Company’s cepital 1 t capiual Ecludys issued egoity capeml i alf other eouity reserves minbocabie 10 e sty hilden of 1he enipeen The primeny

anjective of e Company's capited masagement is i meximise (he Sareholdes valie

The Cospany sesks (0 saintaiil a habanee betwees the higher retens i i by possible wits higher levels of Bcrransss and the sdvaniages md sscucily afoedsd by o socbid capita
peritan. The primiry objective of the companys copetal manageosant i5 o maxiinise the sharehnlder valise,

The Conigany monitors capil wsing @ gearing mie, which is nel debn divided by el sapilel phes net ety The Company s palicy 18 % keep (he geanng mno Bapemn 106 i 50% The
Ceanpany measures undeibyings net debt as wesal abilities, SRR R eanng loes and borfowicgs, excluding sny Sase o subsidizsies o prensp compames less cesh gl cash
eqgiivilesas. For the purpase of capial pwanagement, 1ot capinl inchikes ised equity capisl, shis premium and @ ether neserves atiribesahle fo the equity holders of the Ceinpamy, o
pplicabie

Compury's sdjusted nst debd 1 sgeny valio as al 31 March 2020 {5 Tollow: {hmiowne i millpn]

4 Axad Ad
i 31 March, 260 3l March, 2019
Borroradngs (hote |14 & 1183 39T T63 &0
Leess: cadhy and eash equivalens (Muosg 50) 14001 1200 56
Adljusted Met debd (A) LA 56104
Ly | 435 85 1,522.32
Talak exmty (B 142585 }iSad.5r
Tand eguily and med dehe | = (A +Rj| PEISS Ay
Gearing Ruil {4/0) 1 Ao 2H93%
b weider o achiien e this vl objocsve, the Compsam’s capild L oyt other things, s qu ensare thai it meess Paaneisl coveanis aisackel o i interesa-hearing loass wad

barrwings dal define capital srocwre requlnesints. Drenches |1 ieeing ihe Bnemcial covweisms wosld permit the bk o ammediately zall loars B borrowings, Thewe have lneen po
Eaeackes in ihe finsacial covenants ol any inlenst bearing laans and bumowing mthe corent period

Mo-changes were e in the shjscivs, palises or prozesses for mmsaging capinad during Ui vears ended 31 Mareh 20200 and 11 March 3016
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46 Fair Values
The Carrying values of financial instrements by categones is as under
(Amount n mililan)

Particalirs 31 March 2020 A0 March 20F%
Aumgrtioed Cost . FYTPL FVTOC] Anartized Cost FYTPL FVTOLCI

Assels

Financinl assets

- Laans 3580 - . 3500 - -

- Imvestiments Toa0 B = TO00 . -

<{hber financinl assels il . = Ta2T . .

Non Courrent Financial Laliliies

- Borrowmgs 139.0% - - 32374 - -

«C)eher finameinl tizbilities 2571 - - 19.G5 - -

Current Financinl lizbilitics

- Horrowings 154 66 4382

- Dither finencial linhilities 367.85 - . 20155

The tair values of eurrent financhal assets like tmde recivables, loans and cash & cash equivalents and current financial linbilities ke tade payables
and other current financial labilities are considered o be saome os 1heir carnving valoes due 1o thelr shor emm nature.

I eyl iomaunts of other isems carried af amonized cost are reasonable appreximation of Usele Gir vidoes,

Crusn it ive dischosires fubr value messurement hicrarchy for assets as a1 March 31, 2020 [Ampuit in million}
Fair value measarement wsing
Quiirled price in Significant Significant
netive market olservalife inputs  wnobiservibbe inpuis
{Level 1) {Level 3) iLevel 3)
Asscts measured at faiv value
Lerims s ] B RG
[nvestmens - 3 o
Oiher finnncial pssets - - 511
Linbilities measured at fadr value
Burrowings - - I3 TR
Chaheer finamcial liabilines - - 393.57
Duantitarive disclosures fair value measurement hicrnrehy for assets as st Mareh 31, 2010 [Amount in million}
Fair value measyrement using
Chusted price in Significant Significant
netive market observabbe inputs  unobservable inpuote
(Luwel 1) {Level 31 {Level 3)

Asscis measured at Mir value
Loans - ] 300
[nvestmenis - - To.00
Uner financiad assens - - w7
Linbilities measured at fair value
oo ngs . - ELERH]
Cler Griancial liobilibes - - 23060
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AT Major components of income tax expense Tor the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2009 are as follows:

Profil or luss section {Anrunt in million)
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Corrent income tax

Current income tix chorge - 5.1
Adjustment of taxes for carlier years 19,445 {190}
Deferred tax

[Zelating to arigination and reversal of tining differences (449.67) 2180
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or Ioss (30.21) 4412
OCT section {Amount in milliony

31 March 2020 3 March 214

Deferred tax related fo items recogmised in OCT dusing (he year
Met lossigain] on remeasurement of defined benetit plan {627 {5.83)

Income 1ax charged we OC1 {1.27) 15933

Fecemgiliation of tax expense and the aecounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic i rade for 31 March 2020 and 31 March 20189
Ao in million}

For the year ended  For the vear ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Aceounting profif befose {54.95) 1Mas
Al Indiar's statutory tncome fax rate of 25,1 7% {31 March 2004: 29, 125} {25,165) 3237
Mon deductitle expenses for tax purposes im 140
Permunent difference not vonsidersd for defemred taxes 597 RO
(Hhers [RER] 744
Al the effective income tax rate of 2Z3.70% (31 March 2009: 43.19%) 130.210) 48,12
Ingome tnx expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (321} 48.12

The Compuny eleeted 1o exercise the option permitted under section | 13BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 a% introduced by the Taxation
Laws {Amendinent) Ordinance, 2009, Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for Invome Tux for the year and resmessired it
[xeferned tux nsset basis the rate preseribed in the sid section,

4% Employee stock compensation expense

I 2012, the ultmate holding company instiuled the ESOP Scheme 2012 (the “ESOP 20127, Under the ESOP plan, the commitics may grant
awards of equily based stock options being Growth options 1o the employees of ditinate holding compary and its subsidiaries, As per the
Indian Accounting Stendard (Ind AS) 102 “Bhare based payments”, the Company receiving the services shall measure e services reoeived as
i equity sellled transection and required to recard met‘l‘lﬁtlw! oot ot discloss |nfmmut|m1 mlaimH 0 it shares frmmg;l to the mplnﬁ-mﬁ
of the Company, under the ahove Plan. Since g

has taken stock uplion cost pertains to options granbed far lh-.-. nmp]l:l}t-e uf lht; Cmmpan; as -.ulculd.lnd by the ult:ma:c hnlmng Enmpamr under
Il A% 102




Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Motes to financial statement for the vear ended 31 March 2020
CIN: UT4899DLIOTI PTO005T66

A4 Tmpact of COVID =19

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandamie globally is causing o slowdown in economic activity including India. This event haz
signilicantly effected economic aclivilies nd the impact of coronuvirus on our Business will depend on fulure developments that cnnot be
relisbly predieted, Post the outhreak, certaln premises timeluding warehouse) of the Company and thicd party {used fie job work purposesy by
been closed since March 22 2020, howewer, eflective May 0, 2020, sperations hive commenced in s phased manner as per the directives from
the govermment.

In-developing the assumplions relating 16 possible uncertainties in the business condilions because of the pindemic, the Compiany, as on the
date of approval of these financinls results have wsed variuble information as availatie and considered the posaibie effects that may result from
COVID-E9 on (e carrving amount of its assels j o gssessng counterparty eredit risk in case of financial assets (comprising cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits end investments in mutual funds) and subsequent recoveries, past trends, credit risks profile of customers in case of
trinde recoivables and advonces 1o vendors. The company expects 1o recover the currying amosn of the assets and investment. The Compary
while assessing Right 1o Use Asset and Investment in Subsidearies, has considered past trend, fulure business projections, perlormed sensitivity
analviis on the sssumplions used and Based on cerment estimates expects the canying umount of odher assets will be recovercd and docs ol

oresoe cither significant down-sizing in the eperations or any changes in legsé lerms.

A at the balance sheed date, the Company has evaluated the impact of SOV 19 on its fimancial resuits. The impact of COVID 19 may differ
fram Lhat estimaed s at the date of approval of these financial statemnents. Thess have heen 1o material changes in the controls or processes
fulhewed in the financial statements clesmg process of the company, The compary will continue 1o moniter any fiiure changes o the besiness
and financial stalements doe o COVID-19,

T management. based on s current end future business plans. after considering COVID 1% impact, his assessed that the Company's ahility
to et ils comtractusl chligations and liabilites that Sl due in near fitore ineluding repayment of the debls teken from banks / finaseial
thstitutians ane! their related covenants, is dependent upon timely realization of debtors callections. The management lias assessed that it vl be
itble to realioe the colleorions on timely busis despite COVID 19 challenges and would be able to amange sufficiem working capital facilities
from barks! finencial intuitions, il tequired, fo ensure continuity of operations The management has availed moratonum offered b bunlcs
during the month of Apr-bMay'20 to manags cush Aows.

The Company as parl of its policy performs physical verification of mventary bi-imnually in September und March every yewr. Accordingly, the
mimagement, had earcied out physical verilication of inventory as &t Seplember 30, 2019, however, as ot Marc 1, 202U, due o wravel
restriglions an account of COVID- 1% wnd due to significant business setivities subsequent 10 yedr-end in the posi-lock down period, the
ranagemend could nol perform physical count of inventory as at March 31, 2020 through 1o the dae ol dpprovitl of these financial siatements
The management hes, therelore, nélied upon the fnventory count refected in s books of scoounts. which i5 the balancing figure for (e opening,
purchases s the inventory eonsumed { sold during the financial vear The manggement intends to complete the physicel verification process in

St The Shareholders of Wikas Fublishing House Private Limited {iransferee) and Rajendra Ravindra Printer Privade Limited {transforor) (RRPLY 2
subsidiary of § Chand And Company Limited (SCCL), had approved o scheme of amalgamation (the schefte) ws 391-294 of the Companies
Act, 1950 und applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 (1o the exent applicalile). In sceordance with the scheme REPL merged with the
Company wet st April. 2014, The Hon'ble Delh High Court had miver its approval 1o the Schere on February |8, 2016 and order was
received by the company on Apeil 7, 2006, The approved scheme was filed with the Begistrar of Companies on April 27, 2016 and the Scheme
became effective from such date. Asséts and liabilitics, rights and obligation of the REPL were transferred mio the Company (as provided i the
Scheme).

Dhuring FY 2012-13, Kajendra Ravindra Printing Private Limited “Amalgamating Company” had sold its cerin land end buwilding {acquired n
1923 to its wholly owned subsidiary, and claimed exemption under sestion 47iv) ef Income Tex Act, 1961 {“Act”). However, by virwe of
merger of RRPL, the subsidiary company ceases to be wholly owned subsidiary of RREL before expiry of § years from the date of ransfer,

accordingly. capital gains claimed &= oy sk

i A ] gk pog

bieen recognised in the books of accounts. The company has filed an application with ihe

Lonsidering this, s lnbility for Rs 33 51 million kas
department.

('This space fas been intentionally left blank)
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51 Previous year figures have been regrouped! reclassed, where necessary, (o confoem (o this veurs classification

The aceosnpanymg notes are an integral pan of the financial stlements
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